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+44 (0)300 323 0140

Sent by e-mail only: XXXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXX 
FAOXXXXXXXXXXX 
CDKL5 UK
24 September 2024


Dear XXXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXX

Re: Final Draft Guidance - Ganaxolone for treating seizures caused by CDKL5 deficiency disorder in people 2 years and over (ID3988)
Thank you for your letter of 17 September 2024 responding to my initial scrutiny views. This is my final decision on initial scrutiny.

In my initial scrutiny letter dated 03 September 2024, I invited CDKL5 UK to provide evidence and/or argument as to why you consider that the Committee's approach was arguably unfair in its failure to give adequate time or consideration to further data submitted by the Orion Pharma UK ("the Company") at the third committee meeting. In particular I invited you to point me to papers evidencing what consideration (if any) was given at the third committee meeting to this data, how much time/consideration you say was required as a matter of procedural fairness and what impact you say further consideration by the Committee would or may have had on its decision-making. I note that you have not provided that information but have made some further comments and arguments relating to the committee's approach to the data on utility values. I respond to your further comments below.

Ground 1(a) NICE has failed to act fairly

Appeal point 1.1(a): that the Committee gave inadequate time and/or consideration to data submitted by the company at the third Committee meeting.

In your response, you:

1. Note that you cannot see reference to the international parent caregiver survey in the EAG or company submissions for the third meeting

2. State that there was debate between the company, EAG and committee as to how best to assess burden of illness

3. Express disappointment that the "EAG remain focussed on using Auvin as the most suitable proxy for CDD whilst acknowledging it's limitation"

4. Conclude that "despite the availability of more meaningful data in the international caregiver survey, disagreements between the committee, the Evidence Appraisal Group and the company surrounding proxy's have led to a decision that will negatively impact patients".

I am not persuaded that reference to this survey in the EAG or company submissions supports any arguable procedural unfairness. You have not pointed to any evidence to suggest it was not given
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adequate time or consideration by the committee. Rather, it seems to me that the committee was aware of and understood this evidence as it is referenced and explained in context at para 3.16 of the Final Draft Guidance ("FDG"). I would note that NICE has a 'factual accuracy' process enabling stakeholders to challenge the accuracy of statements in the FDG, and the company has not challenged the committee's description of the survey at para 3.16.

In your letter, you state that there was debate between the company, EAG and committee and you express disappointment that "the EAG remain focussed on using Auvin as the most suitable proxy for CDD whilst acknowledging it's limitation".

I hope it will assist you if I explain the EAG's role in NICE's technology appraisal process. As set out in the NICE health technology evaluations: the manual ("the Manual"), NICE invites evidence from a number of stakeholders, which includes companies, clinical experts and the external assessment group ("EAG"). The EAG is an independent academic group that reviews the evidence including any stakeholder submissions and the clinical and cost effectiveness, or cost comparisons of the technology or technologies being evaluated. The EAG develops an external assessment report for the committee.

In other words, the EAG is not a decision-maker. Nor indeed is the company. It is for the company to make its case to the committee, the EAG to provide the committee with its expert advice and the committee to reach a decision. This means the EAG, company and committee do not debate or deliberate in order to reach a joint decision. Rather, the committee considers evidence of various types and from multiple sources (including from the company and EAG) to make its own recommendation. The key point here is that the EAG's view is not to be conflated with the committee's own view. This is why NICE's appeals process is for challenges to the committee's decision-making (not conclusions of the EAG).

Although it is right that the EAG preferred the Auvin et al (2021) vignette study, the committee at para
3.16 FDG concluded that it preferred the Lo et al. (2022) vignette study as presented by the company, despite its substantial limitations.

The FDG sets out (at paragraph 3.16) the committee's detailed consideration of the various utility data sources and its concerns about their limitations. It explains that although the Committee initially considered that the utility values from Auvin et al. better reflected the impact on health-related qualify of life from changes in the seizure frequency component of CDD, following consultation and the submission of the interim data from the ongoing international caregiver survey by the company in support of its preference for Lo et al., the committee ultimately concluded that, on balance and despite both options having substantial limitations and despite there being substantial remaining uncertainty, Lo et al. would be a more appropriate source for utility values than Auvin et al.

I am therefore not persuaded that you make an arguable point that the committee has failed to act fairly in its consideration of the data submitted by the company.

Conclusion

For the reasons set out above, I will not refer your appeal for consideration at an appeal hearing. This letter therefore brings your appeal to an end. I can confirm, however, that this does not bring NICE's internal appeal process to a close. That is because another appellant has made valid appeal points that I have referred to the Appeal Panel for consideration at an oral hearing. Details of the appeal process will be published on NICE's website here: [https://www.nice.org.uk/guidance/indevelopment/gid- ta10948/documents]

Thank you for your comments and engagement in the appeals process.
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XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

Yours sincerely

Dr Mark Chakravarty

Lead Non-Executive Director for Appeals & Vice Chairman National Institute for Health and Care Excellence
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